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Questions Submitted

All references to Request for Submissions (RFS) in this document are to the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress Request for Submissions that was released on November 19, 2015. The answers have been organized by sections of the RFS, as submitted by the potential bidders, without reference to the individual or company asking the question. 

	RFS Section:  1. PURPOSE


1. Why does Table 1.1 exclude operational administration of the California Standards Tests (CSTs), the California Modified Assessment (CMA), and California Alternate Performance Assessment (CAPA) in science, and the Standards-based Tests in Spanish (STS) in 2017–18? 

Operational administration of the CSTs, the CMA, and the CAPA in science and the STS will not be conducted in 2017–18. See Addendum #1, Table 1.1. 
2. Does the statement below require that the alternate assessment be delivered on the same testing platform as the Next Generation Science Standards (NGSS) and Smarter Balanced assessments? “The contractor will be responsible for the integration, hosting, delivery, operations, and administration of all the CAASPP computer-based assessments, existing and yet to be developed, as a single integrated system.”
Yes, see RFS, Section 3.3.2.
3. If more than one form will be administered during any one administration of the CSTs and STS, please state that number for the sake of pricing the distribution, scanning, and scoring of these test forms.

See Addendum #1, Section 1, Table 1.1 and footnotes.
4. Will the successor to the STS assessment be administered instead of the Smarter Balanced English–language arts (ELA) (computer-based and paper-pencil), or in addition to Smarter Balanced ELA, as was the case with the STS when it was a part of the Standardized Testing and Reporting (STAR) Program?

See Addendum #1, page 6, Section 1.
	RFS Section:  2. BACKGROUND


5. How many unique spring 2019 operational forms should vendors plan to support via field testing of new Science Assessments in 2017-18?

See Addendum #1, Section 1, Table 1.1 and footnotes.
6. Does RFS Section 3.3.2 (Assessment Delivery System) refer to the Assessment Delivery System component of the Assessment Technology Platform defined on page 10 or the entire Assessment Technology Platform?
See Addendum #1, Section 3.3.2.

7. If known, what changes does Smarter Balanced plan to release in 2016 for the annual version of the test administration platform?

At this time, it is unknown what changes will be made to the Smarter Balanced testing platform in the future. See Addendum #1, Section 2.3.

8. Is the STS a Spanish language arts test or an ELA test translated into Spanish? Is the test intended to measure Spanish language skills and abilities, knowledge of English language conventions through Spanish, or literacy generally?
See RFS, Appendix A, # 5 for Technical Reports.
	RFS Section:  3. SCOPE OF WORK


9. Please clarify the volumes for the alternate assessment in ELA and mathematics. The table shows a total of 39,000, but then indicates 4,000 paper-pencil assessments plus 39,000 online assessments, for a total of 43,000.

See Addendum #1, Table 3.2.

10. Are bidders to assume paper-pencil versions of the Smarter Balanced summative assessments will not be provided in 2017–18? 
See Addendum #1, Table 3.2.
11. What n-count (sample size) should the bidder assume for the Science NGSS Pilot Test in 2016–17? Is it all computer-based?
See Addendum #1, Sections 3.6.2.
12. What n-count (sample size) should we assume for the Primary Language Pilot Test in Year 2016–17? Is it all computer-based?

See Addendum #1, Sections 3.6.2.
13. Is the bidder to assume n-counts for computer-based tests and zero paper-pencil tests for the Primary Language Field Test in 2017–18? 
See Addendum #1, Sections 3.6.2.
14. How many items for the new tests need to be delivered in each year? We assume no item development for the Smarter Balanced, CST/CMS/CAPA for science and STS test, is this correct?
There is no item development for the CST/CMA/CAPA Science assessments and STS assessments. See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.2.
15. Do we need to provide student reports in 2017–18 for the NGSS Science assessment for the census field test?
See Addendum #1, Section 3.9.1.
	RFS Section:  3.1, TASK 1: Comprehensive Plan and Schedule of Deliverables


16. When should the testing contractor anticipate receiving the 2016 summative and interim test packages, paper-pencil forms and answer documents, and supporting materials (e.g., training, administration manuals, and accommodations procedures) from Smarter Balanced? 
See Addendum #1, Section 3.1.
17. Is the contractor responsible for managing and paying for accommodations, meals, logistics and member honoraria for the Technical Advisory Group meetings? 
See Addendum #1, Section 3.1.3.D.
18. The RFS indicates the contractor must respond to the first report from the independent evaluator by October 31, 2015. Given that the first administration for this contract is 2016, please confirm the date for this requirement. 
See Addendum #1, Section 3.1.4.D.
	RFS Section:  3.2, TASK 2: Program Support Services


19. Regarding the Call Center, is there a volume estimate for Digital Library contacts?

See RFS, Section 3.2.4, specifically paragraph 1.
20. Will the entire Internet Resource Site and all of its contents, along with the domain name be transferred to the new contractor? 
See Addendum #1, Section 3.2.6.

21. Will the California Department of Education (CDE) require the contractor to handle all updates to the contents and reference documents within the Internet Resource Site?

Yes. See Addendum #1, Section 3.2.6.

22. Are there common local educational agency (LEA) buildings in which the trainings can take place? Or, is the vendor expected to find locations such as hotel meeting rooms for the trainings?

As set forth in, Section 3.2.7.C, the contractor will be responsible for all costs associated with these workshops and Webcasts and for making all arrangements, including meeting and Webcast locations and equipment.
23. How many LEAs will be a part of the pre-test workshop training? How many trainers per LEA will be trained? Can the vendor set the limit on the number of personnel from the LEA's who will be trained? How many people from the CDE are anticipated to attend the training?
See Addendum #1, Section 3.2.7.A, first paragraph. 

24. Can you please describe the process in which you will approve the workshop presenters?
See RFS, Section 3.1.9. 

25. Please describe who will be trained on the Interim Assessments and the Digital Library and the number of people.
See Addendum #1, Section 3.2.7.B.
26. Is there a preference between a Webcast or Webinar?

The RFS addresses only Webcasts, not Webinars. See Section 3.2.7.C. 
	RFS Section:  3.3, TASK 3: Technology Services


27. Table 3.3.1. SDP-04.04. What situation would warrant the CDE to limit the interim usage? Would it be like a security breach, or during summative testing? We want to understand what circumstances may cause this request, and would the same apply to summative testing?
See California Code of Regulations Section 855 that states the following: “The CDE, with the approval of the SBE President or designee, may require LEAs to more fully utilize the testing window and may also limit the usage of the interim assessments in instances where the CDE determines that it is necessary to do so to ensure that the capacity of the California K–12 High Speed Network (K12HSN) is not exceeded.”
	RFS Section:  3.4, TASK 4: Test Security


28. Section 3.4.1 Security Breaches. Does the requirement to monitor social media and Web sites for test materials that may be exposed, and conduct investigations of more serious security breaches apply to Smarter Balanced Interim Assessments, or only Summative Assessments?
See RFS, Section 3.4.
29. Section 3.4.1: Is the mention of LEA audits (under the sub-heading of Security Breaches) in reference to the detail provided under 3.4.2., or a separate security audit?
No. See RFS, Section 3.4.
30. Section 3.4.2: The RFS states "Monitors must be trained and appropriate background checks must be completed prior to any monitoring visits." What constitutes, “appropriate background checks?”
See Addendum #1, Section 3.4.2.
	RFS Section:  3.5, TASK 5: Accessibility and Accommodations


31. Section 3.5.1.A.3: What should the assessment delivery systems’ capability be in terms of supporting translations?
See Addendum #1, Section 3.5.1.A.3.
32. Section 3.5.1.A.3: What languages should be supported for the NGSS assessments?
See Addendum #1, Section 3.5.1.A.3.
	RFS Section:  3.6, TASK 6: Assessment Development


33.
Section 3.6. Will the Smarter Balanced paper-pencil forms provided be in the format of consumable test booklets, or will they be separate test booklets and answer documents? 

See RFS, Section 3.7.2.A.1.
34.
Section 3.6.1. Will items from CST/CMA/CAPA Science be available for use on the new Science Assessments, given that they meet agreed-upon acceptance criteria?
See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.2.
35.
Section 3.6.1. Should Science Assessment item development assume item quantities sufficient for embedding in 2018–19 operational forms?
See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.2.B.

36.
Section 3.6.1. Are full and/or glossary translations required for the Science Assessment? If so, please specify what language(s) for full translations and/or glossaries and whether translations are intended as part of the Pilot and Field Testing.
See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.1.
37.
Section 3.6.2 Item and Task Development Alternate Assessments. Will each task/item be written to three levels of difficulty, or to four levels? 
See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.2.
38.
Section 3.6.2 Item and Task Development Alternate Assessments. Please provide any test design and blueprint information that has served as the basis for the spring 2015 field test. 
See RFS Section, 3.1.5. and Addendum #1, Section 3.6.2. 
39.
Section 3.6.2 Table 1.1 indicates that the Pilot and Field Testing of the Science Assessment will be computer-based testing. Should the development of the new Science Assessment include any paper?
Pilot and Field Testing of Science Assessments will be online computer-based assessments only. See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.2.A. 
40.
Section 3.6.2 Item and Task Development Alternate Assessments. Does the CDE anticipate that after the spring 2015 field test there will be enough items in the bank to build at least one operational form per grade and subject?
No. See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.2.
41.
Section 3.6.2 Item and Task Development Alternate Assessments. Will the spring 2015 field test be the sole source for operational tasks/items in the bank for a spring 2016 operational forms, or will the bank be supplied from any other source(s) as well?
See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.2.
42.
Section 3.6.2 Item and Task Development Alternate Assessments. How many tasks/items are included in the spring 2015 field test, broken down by subject area, grade, and standard?
See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.2.
43.
Section 3.6.2 Item and Task Development Alternate Assessments. Should all newly developed items not only be aligned to the California Common Core State Standards (CCSS) but also to the Core Content Connectors developed by National Center and State Collaborative (NCSC)?
Yes. See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.2.
44.
Section 3.6.2 Item and Task Development Alternate Assessments. Will the new vendor be expected to develop item and test specifications and a style guide for the new alternate assessment? Or will the new vendor maintain and update existing item and test specifications and an existing style guide?
The RFS does not reference a style guide other than the CDE style manual. See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.1.

45.
Section 3.6.2 Item and Task Development. Does the CDE have any specifications or guidelines regarding committee reviews such as the organization of the meetings (by grade, grade-band) and the number of estimated participants?
See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.2.
46.
Section 3.6.2 Item and Task Development. Does the CDE require a separate committee passage review?
No. See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.2.
47.
Section 3.6.2, the vendor will review existing STAR items and items field-tested in 2015 for potential to match/adapt them to the new assessments. What is the anticipated number of items per grade and subject that vendors should plan to review for potential use in the new alternate assessment program?
See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.2.
48.
Section 3.6.2, the current alternate assessment item bank will include technology-enhanced item types available to the successful bidder. Given that, the operational administration must be both computer-based and paper-pencil; will there also be "equivalent" paper-pencil items available to the bidder to replace technology-enhanced items on a spring 2016 operational computer-based form?
See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.2.

49.
Section 3.6.2 Does California intend to use items from NCSC in the Alternate Assessment? 
This information is not known to the CDE at this time.
50.
Section 3.6.2 Item and Task Development. For the sake of comparative costing, please confirm that the data review meetings and the Differential Item Functioning review meetings are required to be distinct meetings with distinct content review panels?
See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.2.

51.
Section 3.6.2, the vendor will review existing STAR items and items field-tested in 2015 for potential to match/adapt them to the new assessments. What is the anticipated number of items per grade and subject that vendors should plan to review for potential use in the new alternate assessment program?
See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.2 and Table 3.6.1.
52.
Section 3.6.2.A-B: Will CDE assist in the recruitment of schools to participate in the pilot and field test samples?
See Addendum #1, Sections 3.6.2.A and 3.6.2.B. 
53.
Section 3.6.2.B: Does the CDE expect the science field test to be a census field test? 
 See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.2.B.
54.
Section 3.6.2.B: What is the CDE's expectation with regard to the number of items to be field-tested for each subject & grade, assuming that there will be continued embedded field-testing during the operational assessments?
See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.2.B
55.
At this time, is it known what changes will be made to the Smarter Balanced testing platform in the future? 

No. See Addendum #1, Section 2.3.

56.
Section. 3.6.3 Standard Setting. Are you assuming an alternate standard setting in 2015–16 for ELA and Math?
Yes. See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.3. 

57.
Section 3.6.3. Standard Setting states “The submission must describe and demonstrate in detail the standard setting for the alternate assessments (excluding science) and the primary language assessments (as appropriate) to set the cut scores for the performance levels for each test.” Does this mean that proposals should NOT include a plan/budget for designing and conducting standard setting for the regular new Science Assessment?
Yes. See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.3. 
58.
Section 3.6.8.D. The RFS states that the Primary Language Assessment will be a test in Spanish of California's CCSS ELA standards. California has translated and augmented the CCSS for ELA into Spanish. Is this Spanish version of the CCSS the target for the Primary Language Assessment alignment?
No. See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.8.D.
59.
Section 3.6.8.D. Is it the CDE's intention that the Primary Language Assessment will measure both reading and writing, as the STS does?
Yes. See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.8.D.
60.
Section 3.6.8.D. How many unique spring 2019 operational forms should vendors plan to support via field testing of new Primary Language Assessments in 2017–18?
See Addendum #1, Section 1, Table 1.1 and footnotes. 

	RFS Section:  3.7, TASK 7: Test Administration


61.
Section 3.7.1.A. It says manuals are both paper and electronic. Should we assume all computer-based tests only get electronic manuals and paper-pencil tests get hard copy manuals? 
No. See Addendum #1, Section 3.7.1.A.
62.
Section 3.7.2.A.2 What student supports are required for the Science Assessment Piloting Testing (e.g., Braille, text-to-speech, American Sign Language)?
See Addendum #1, Section 3.6.2.B.
63.
Section 3.7.3.A.2 Appeals for Computer Based Assessments. Can you provide an n-count of how many appeals will be requested and approved each year?

See Addendum #1, Section 3.7.3.A.2.
	RFS Section:  3.8, TASK 8: Scoring and Analysis


64.
Section 3.8.1.A.2. Response counts on each of the computer-based testing ELA hand scoring items are expected to vary considerably. How should we expect the response counts on performance task hand scoring items to be distributed across all the items in the item bank? Will each item at a grade level have roughly the same number of responses to score?
See RFS, Section 3.8.1.A.2 and Table 3.8.1.
65. The RFS states the each student will be administered between four and seven items requiring hand scoring on the mathematics assessment depending on grade. Will all students at a particular grade be administered the same number of mathematics items requiring hand scoring and if so, can you please indicate the number of items per student by grade?
See RFS, Section 3.8.1.A.2 and Table 3.8.2.a
66. Section 3.8.1.A.2. Performance Task and Constructed Response Scoring. States that CDE approves all training material for hand scoring activities. Will CDE need to approve the hand scoring training materials developed by the University of California, Los Angeles (UCLA) that are adapted by the contractor? 
Yes. See RFS, Section 3.8.1.A.2.
67. Table 3.8.1 in the RFS indicates a total of 680 unique math items. P.91 indicates there are approximately 82 individual items that will need training. How many hand scoring items are associated with each task model? 
This information is not known to the CDE at this time. 
68. Table 3.8.1 in the RFS indicates a total of 1,022 ELA Short Text / Brief Write items. The Smarter Balanced Hand-Scoring rules state there are 16 trainings by grade span for ELA short text items, which is 48 total task model trainings. How many unique items are associated with each task model?
This information is not known to the CDE at this time. 
69. Section 3.8.1.C. According to the RFS, the cumulative score may include the local scoring of the interim assessments. Is this intended to be part of the overall summative score, or is this cumulative score something new and additional to the overall score?
See Addendum #1, Section 3.8.1.C.
70. As shown in Table 1.1. on page 6 and Table 3.2 on page 16, the contractor will be responsible for administering and analyzing the results (Section 3.8.2 Analysis of Test Results, pages 93-96) for 2016 and 2017 for the legacy programs CST and STS. Please confirm that for the 2016 and 2017 administrations, the contractor will be receiving from the CDE pre-equated forms with the associated Raw-Score-to-Scale-Score tables for the CST and STS.
See Addendum #1, Section 3.8.2. 
71. Section 3.8.2.C. According to the RFS, there is an expectation to provide computer-based and performance task scores for replication analyses. For 2015, Smarter Balanced has not provided specifications for reporting these as separate scores. Can the CDE clarify if it is looking to produce and report two new scores in the summative assessments?
See Section 3.8.2.C of the RFS. 
	RFS Section:  4. GENERAL SUBMISSION INFORMATION



72. Fiscal Year Budget Summary (Attachment 10B) - Section 4.4 of the RFS (Time Period) states, "bidders are requested to provide proposed costs for the 2015–16, 2016–17, and 2017–18 test administrations with an end date of December 31, 2018." Can you confirm that the Fiscal Year 2018-19 column in Attachment 10B is intended only to capture close-out activities related to the 2017–18 test administrations which may occur after June 30, 2018 but before December 31, 2018?
Yes. See RFS, Sections 1 and 5.3. 
	RFS Section:  5. SUBMISSION SPECIFICATIONS



73.
Section 5.1 Submission Requirements. Can you confirm that the files for the electronic copy on CD can be in adobe acrobat (.pdf) format? 
The RFS does not stipulate the format of the electronic copy. The copy may be in adobe acrobat format.

74.
Section 5 Submission Requirements. Can you clarify if the Price Proposal is to be included along with the Technical Response binder or separately sealed?
Per Section 5.2.g, the Cost Submission (RFS, Attachments 10B, 10C, and 10D) information must be included in the submission as instructed in RFS Section 5.Submission Specifications.
	RFS Section:  9. BUDGET AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS



75. Section 9. Liquidated Damages. The liquidated damages provision states that the Contractor may be charged up to 10 percent of the contract value for any component task not delivered by the date in the Agreement. It is unclear whether this means (a) liquidated damages may be assessed for each component task in an amount up to 10 percent of the contract value of that component task, or (b) the total liquidated damages assessed under the agreement is up to 10 percent of the contract value. Which interpretation is correct?
Yes. Per California Education Code Section 60643(b)(4), liquidated damages may be assessed for any component task in an amount up to 10 percent of the contract value of that component task. 
76. Section 9. Liquidated Damages. Liquidated Damages and Indemnification Clarification. We presume that liquidated damages and indemnification obligations do not apply to the extent caused by force majeure events or the actions or inaction of parties outside the reasonable control of the Contractor and its subcontractors. Is this presumption correct?
See Section 9 of the RFS.
